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INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'SREPORT 

To the Members of 

M/s Radico Spiritzs India Private Limited 

Report on the Standalone md AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of M/s Radico Spiritzs India 

Private Limited ("the Company") which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity 
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the md AS and accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and profit/loss, total comprehensive income, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone md AS financial statements 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters (optional)'or listed companies) 

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit 
of the standalone md AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the Standalone md AS financial statements as a whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Pv'Ianagement Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to 
Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but 

does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we d 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 



In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the auditor otherwise appears to be material 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone md AS 
Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone md AS financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes 
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including Indian Accounting Standards (md AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate.internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the standalone md AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the md AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Standalone lad AS Financial Statement 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone md AS financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if; individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone md AS financial 
statements. 

A further description of the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the standalone md AS financial statements 
is included in Annexure A. This description forms part of our auditor's report. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020("the Order") issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in "Annexure-B" a statement on the 
matters specified in the order to the extent applicable to the company. 

2. AsrequiredbySection143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 
c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report 

are in agreement with the books of account 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone md AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting/' 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken oi 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being 
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appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the Report on adequacy of the internal financial control with respect to the stand alone 
financial statement of the company and operating effectiveness of such control, we give our separate report 
as per Annexure-C. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 
i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial positions. 
ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 

any material foreseeable losses. 
iii) Based on our examination which included test checks, except for instances mentioned below the 

Company. in respect of financial years commencing on 1 April 2023, have used accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the 
same have been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. 
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being 
tampered with other than the consequent impact of the exception given below; 

Nature of exception noted Details of Exception 
Instances of accounting software for 
maintaining books of account which did not 
have a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility, 

The audit trail feature was not enabled at the data 
base level for the accounting software SAP to log 
any direct data changes, used for maintenance of 
all accounting records by the Company. 

iv)There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company. 

Dated: 15/04/2025 

Place: New Delhi 

Uc L3 



Annex ure A to independent audit report: 

Responsibilities for Audit of Standalone md AS Financial Statement 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone md AS financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial controls with reference 
to Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 

cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures 

in the standalone md AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. Evaluate the 

overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone md AS financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone md AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 

statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the standalone md AS financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Dated: 15/04/2025 

Place: New Delhi 



"ANNEXURE-B" REFFERED TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE 
MEMBERS OF RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LTD ON FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2025  

(I) (a) (A) whether the company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment; 

(B) whether the company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of 
intangible assets; 

(b) whether these Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the 
management at reasonable intervals; whether any material discrepancies were noticed on 
such verification and if so, whether the same have been properly dealt with in the books of 
account; 

(c) whether the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the 

company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) 
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company, if not, provide the 
details thereof in the format below:- 

Description 
of property 

Gross carrying 
value 

Held in 
name of 

Whether promoter, 
director 0r their 
relative or employee 

Period held — 
indicate range, 
where 
appropriate 

Reason for not 
being held in 
name of 
company* 

- - - - - *also  indicate 
if in dispute 

(d) whether the company has revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including 
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year and, if so, whether the 
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer; specifi the amount of change, 
if change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property, 
Plant and Equipment or intangible assets; 

(e) whether any proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company 
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 
of 1988) and rules made there under, if so, whether the company has appropriately disclosed 
the details in its financial statements; 

Auditor Observation : the Company maintaining proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and machine, verified by 
management at regular intervals. Title deeds of all the immovable properties are in of 
company. 

During the year company has not revalued its property, tangible assets or intangible asset. 

According to the information and explanation provided to us there is no pending proceeding 
against the company under the Benami transaction (Prohibition) act 1988(45 of 1988) and 
rules made there under. 

(ii) (a) whether physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by 
the management and whether, in the opinion of the auditor, the coverage and procedure of 
such verification by the management is appropriate; whether any discrepancies of 10% or 
more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed and if so, whether they have 
been properly dealt with in the books of account; 

(b) whether during any point of time of the year, the company has been sanctioned wori'--. T 
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial instit$i'ns 
on the basis of security of current assets; whether the quarterly returns or statement filed 



by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of 
account of the Company, if not, give details; 

Auditor Observation: the Company does not have any inventory and also does not have 
working capital limit from bank. So, this point is not applicable to the company. 

(iii) whether during the year the company has made investments in, provided any guarantee or 
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, if so,- 

(a) whether during the year the company has provided loans or provided advances in the 
nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity [not applicable to 
companies whose principal business is to give loans], if so, indicate- 

(A) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with 
respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries,joint ventures and 
associates; 

(B) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with 
respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to parties other than subsidiaries, 
joint ventures and associates; 

Auditor Observation: During the year Company has not given capital advance for purchase 
of land to its seven wholly owned subsidiaries. Outstanding Balance of the same as on 
31/03/2024 and 3 1/03/2025 are Rs. 2666.58 lacs and Rs. 2661.58 lacs respectively. 
Company wise details of capital advance given in notes to account. 

(b) whether the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and 
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees 
provided are not prejudicial to the company's interest; 

(c) in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, whether the schedule of 
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and whether the 
repayments or receipts are regular; 

(d) if the amount is overdue, state the total amount overdue for more than ninety days, and 
whether reasonable steps have been taken by the company for recovery of the principal and 
interest; 

(e) whether any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the 
year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing 
loans given to the same parties, if so, specif,' the aggregate amount of such dues renewed or 
extended or settled by fresh loans and the percentage of the aggregate to the total loans or 
advances in the nature of loans granted during the year [not applicable to companies whose 
principal business is to give loans]; 

(f) whether the company has granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either 
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, if so, specify 
the aggregate amount, percentage thereof to the total loans granted, aggregate amount of 
loans granted to Promoters, related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the 
Companies Act, 2013; 

Auditor Observation: Capital advance given to wholly owned subsidiaries is not prejudicial 
to the interest of company as company has the first right of refusal if in case subsidiaries 
companies wish to sale/dispose ff the land purchased from above said capital advance. 
Further subsidiary companies will provide the land for exclusive benefitluses of company or 
its holding company. 

(iv) in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, whether provisions of - 
185 and 186 of the Companies Act have been complied with, if not, provide the7'dái 
thereof; 



Auditor Observation: According the information and explanation provided to us, company 
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act. 

(v) in respect of deposits accepted by the company or amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits, whether the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made 
there under, where applicable, have been complied with, if not, the nature of such 
contraventions be stated; if an order has been passed by Company Law Board or National 
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal, 
whether the same has been complied with or not; 

Auditor Observation: In our opinion and According to the information and explanation 
provided to us the company has not accepted any deposit from public within the provision 
of section 73 to 76 of the Act. Further as informed that no order has been passed by 
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any 
court or any other tribunal 

(vi) whether maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under 
sub- section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and whether such accounts and 
records have been so made and maintained; 

Auditor Observation: the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost 
records under sub- section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, which are applicable to 
any product/activity of the company. So this point is not applicable to the company. 

(vii) (a) whether the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods 
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory 
dues to the appropriate authorities and if not, the extent of the arrears of outstanding 
statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable, shall be indicated; 

(b) where statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) have not been deposited on account of 
any dispute, then the amounts involved and the forum where dispute is pending shall be 
mentioned (a mere representation to the concerned Department shall not be treated as a 
dispute); 

Auditor Observation In our opinion and according to the information and explanation 
provided to us company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods 
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory 
dues to the appropriate authorities. 

Company does not have any disputed statutory dues outstanding as on the last day of the 
financial year concerned for a period more than 6 month from the date the became due. 

(viii) whether any transactions not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(43 of 1961), if so, whether the previously unrecorded income has been properly recorded 
in the books of account during the year; 

Auditor Observation : According the information and explanation provided to us drI 
the year the Company does not have surrendered or disclosed as income during the y4 in.: 



the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). So this point is not 
applicable to the company. 

(ix) (a) whether the company has defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender, if yes, the period and the amount of default to be 
reported as per the format specified. 

(b) whether the company is a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution 
or otherlender; 

(c) whether term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained; if 
not, theamount of loan so diverted and the purpose for which it is used may be reported; 

(d) whether funds raised on short term basis have been utilised for long term purposes, if 
yes, thenature and amount to be indicated; 

(e) whether the company has taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to 
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, if so, details thereof 
with nature of such transactions and the amount in each case; 

(f) whether the company has raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in 
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, if so, give details thereof and also 
report if the company has defaulted in repayment of such loans raised; 

Auditor Observation: In our opinion and According the information and explanation 
provided to us during the year the company has not taken any loan from any lender 
including Bank or financial institutions. So this point is not applicable to the company. 

(x) (a) whether moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year were applied for the purposes for which those are raised, 
if not, the details together with delays or default and subsequent rectification, if any, as may 
be applicable, bereported; 

(b) whether the company has made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year 
and if so, whether the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 
2013 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for 
which the funds were raised, if not, provide details in respect of amount involved and 
nature of non-compliance; 

Auditor Observation: During the year, the Company has not made any IPO, Preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully of partly convertible debentures. So this 
point is not applicable to the company. 

(xi) (a) whether any fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or 
reported during the year, if yes, the nature and the amount involved is to be indicated; 

(b) whether any report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has 
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government; 

(c) whether the auditor has considered whistle-blower complaints, if any, received during 
the year by the company; 

Auditor Observation: To the best of our knowledge and According the informatipriT 
explanation provided to us, No fraud by the company and no material fraud on the 6paIv 
by its officers or employee has been noticed or reported during the year. As per intorthaiisJ 
provided to us, company does not have received any complaints. 



(xii) (a) whether the Nidhi Company has complied with the Net Owned Funds to Deposits in the 
ratio ofl: 20 to meet out the liability; 

(b) whether the Nidhi Company is maintaining ten per cent. unencumbered term deposits 
as specified in the Nidhi Rules, 2014 to meet out the liability; 

(c) whether there has been any default in payment of interest on deposits or repayment 
thereof for any period and if so, the details thereof 

Auditor Observation: In our opinion and According the information and explanation 
provided to us, the company is not a Nidhi company. So this point is not applicable to the 
company. 

(xiii) whether all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 
188 of Companies Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial 
statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards; 

Auditor Observation : In our opinion and According the information and explanation 
provided to us, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 
177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the 
financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) whether the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and 
nature of itsbusiness; 

(b) whether the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered 
by the statutory auditor; 

Auditor Observation: In our opinion and according the information and explanation 
provided to us, company has internal audit system commensurate with size and nature of 
the its business. But no audit internal audit report has been prepared for the same. 

(xv) whether the company has entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him and if so, whether the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act have 
been complied with; 

Auditor Observation: In our opinion and according the information and explanation 
provided to us, company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with him. So this point is not applicable to the company. 

(xvi) (a) whether the company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank ofindia Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and if so, whether the registration has been obtained; 

(b) whether the company has conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India 
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; 

(c) whether the company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India, if so, whether it continues to fulfil the criteria of a CIC, 
and in case the company is an exempted or unregistered CIC, whether it continues to fulfil 
such criteria; 

(d) whether the Group has more than one CIC as part of the Group, if yes, indicate the 
number of CICs which are part of the Group; 

Auditor Observation: As per information and explanation provided to us, company is 
a NBFC company registered with RBI and the company is not required get registe 
NBFC company with RB!. So this point is not applicable to the company.

/ 

(xvii) whether the company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immeiatd 
preceding financial year, if so, state the amount of cash losses; 
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Auditor Observation: During the year company has incurred cash losses of Rs 6.58 lacs. 
Last year company has not incurred any cash losses. 

(xviii) whether there has been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, if so, 
whether the auditor has taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by 
the outgoing auditors; 

Auditor Observation: During the year there no resignation of statutory auditor. So this 
point is not applicable to the company. 

(xix) on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, 
whether the auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the 
audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date; 

Auditor Observation: In our opinion and according the information and explanation 
provided to us there is no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that 
company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date 

(xx) (a) whether, in respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has transferred unspent 
amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period of six 
months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section 
(5) of section 135 of the said Act; 

(b) whether any amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the 
Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account 
in compliance withthe provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act; 

Auditor Observation: In our opinion and according the information and explanation 
provided to us section 135 of the act does not applicable to the company. So this point is 
not applicable to the company. 

(xxi) whether there have been any qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in 
the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the 
consolidated financial statements, if yes, indicate the details of the companies and the 
paragraph numbers of the CARO report containing the qualifications or adverse remarks. 

Auditor Observation: this report is on standalone financial statements of the company. So 
this point is not applicable. 

PLACE: New Delhi 
DATE : 15/04/2025 



"ANNEXURE C" REFFERED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 (1) OF THE INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF M/s Radico Spiritzs India Private Limited 
ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 3 1.03.2025. 

(Report on the Internal Financial controls under clause (i) of section 143 (3) of the Companies Act, 
2013) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Radico Spiritzs India 
Private Limited (the Company) as of 31 March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAl"). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act"). 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial control system over financial reporting. 

Meaning Of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company7'. . 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquiIti9t, er ' 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statemeth 



For M 
Chartere 

Firm'sRegistratio 

(CA 

Members 
No. 096832 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAl. 

Dated: 15/04/2025 

Place: New Delhi 
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Chartere 
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l'artner 
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UDIN: jr1L 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15.04.2025 

RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Bareilly Road, Rampur, UP 244901 

CIN: U15494UP2013PTC073884 
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2025 

All amount in Lakhs ,unless otherwise stated 

Particulars Note 
As at 

31 March 2025 

As at 
31 March 2024 

I ASSETS 
Non-current assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 

(b) Capital work-in-progress 

(c) Investment property 

(d) Goodwill/Goodwill on consolidation 

(e) Other intangible assets 

2 1,968.73 1,883.93 

(I) Intangible assets under development 

(g) Biological Assets other than bearer plants 

(h) Deferred tax assets, net 

(i) Longterm Investments 

(j) Other non-current assets 

3 
4 

7.00 
2,660.58 

7.00 
2,750.28 

4,636.31 4,64L21 

Current assets 
(a) Cueremt Investment 

(b) Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

(c) Other current assets 

5 

6 
7 

6.88 
3.91 

9.38 
3.65 

10.80 13.02 

Total of Assets 
4,647.11 4,654.23 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 

8 
9 

1.00 
(7.46) 

1.00 
(0.90) 

(6.46) 0.10 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
(a) Other Longterm Liabilities 10 4,650.94 4,650.94 

4,650.94 4,650.94 

Current liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

Trade payables 11 

-Due to micro enterprises and small enterprises 
-Due to others 

(b) Other current liabilities 

(c) Current tax liabilities 

12 
13 

2.63 
- 

2.63 
0.57 

2.63 3.19 

Total of Equity and Liabilities 
4,647.11 4,654.23 

(0.00) (0.00) 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements 
This is the balance sheet referred to irs our report of even date. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Dinesh mar Gupta Alok Eumar 

Director Dire 

[DIN:034129001 [I)lN:00985552] 

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi 

Date: 15.04.2025 Date: 15.04.2025 



RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Bareilly Road, Rampur, UP 244901 

CIN: U15494UP2013PTC073884 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March, 2025 

All amount in ' Lakhs ,unless otherwise stated  

Particulars 
Period ended Year ended 

Note 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Income 
Revenue from operanons - - 

Other income 14 2.69 5.58 

2.69 5.58 

Expenses 
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 15 - - 

Employee benefits expense - - 

Finance Costs - 
Other expenses 16 9.27 1.95 

9.27 1.95 

Profit before tax (6.58) 3.63 

Current tax 17 0.51 

(6.58) 3.12 
Profit after tax 

Other comprehensive income 
A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(i) Equity Instruments through OCT (Net) 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
(6.58) 3.12 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share (In Rs.) 18 
(65.77) 31.19 

Basic () 
(65.77) 31.19 

Diluted () 

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements 19-26 

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

umbe0 

CA Mukes u DineshKum<ta Alok aival 

Partner Director Direc 

Membership Number: 096832 [DlN:03412900 [DIN:00985552] 

UDTN: 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15.04.2025 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15.04.2025 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15.04.2025 

For MGMA & Co 
Chartered 
Firm's Regi 



For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Dines 'Kuma(öupta Alok Kumar 

I)irector Dire1 

pIN:03412900] [DIN:00985552] 

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi 

Date: 15.04.2025 Date: 15.04.2025 

For MGMA & Co 

Chartered Ac 

Firms Regis 

CA Mukesh 

Partner 
Membership Number: 09 :32 

RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 31 March, 2025 
Mi amount in  Lakhs ,unless otherwise stated 

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

A. Cash flow from operating activities: 
Proflt/(loss) before tax (6.58) 3.63 

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Interest income - 

Dividend income - 

Reversal Excess Provision for Income Tax of 0.02 

Operating loss before working capital changes and other adjustments: (6.56) 3.63 

Working capital chan,ges and other adjustments: 

- Increase/decrease in trade receivablcs 
- (Increase/decrease in loans, other financial assets and other assets (0.27) (0.62) 

- (Increase)/decrease in inventories - 

- Increase! (decrease) in trade payables - 

in financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions (0.57) 0.57 
- (Decrcase)/increase other 
Cash used in operating activities (7.39) 3.58 

Income taxes (net) paid 
- (0.51) 

in (7.39) 3.07 
Net cash used operating activities 

B. Cash flow from investing activities: 

Lease Rent Income 
Advance for Land 89.80 

Security Deposit lodged (0.10) 

Freehold Land Purchase of 

Net cash flow activities from investing 

C. Cash flow from financing activities: 
Proceeds form issue of equity share capital 

2,151.20 
Proceeds of borrowings from banks and financial institutions 

Purchase of Fixed Assets 
Loan/Advance to Subsidiaries/for land 

(84.80) 

89.70 

(1,560.38) 

(590.29) 

from in) financing activities 4.90 0.53 
Net cash flow /(used 

D. Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2.49) 3.60 

E. Cash at the beginning of the year and cash equivalents 9.38 5.78 

F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) 6.88 9.38 

(a) Cash and cash equivalents includes: 

Cash on hand 

Balances with banks 

In current accounts 6.88 9.38 

Total of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 6) 6.88 9.38 

(0.00) (0.00) 

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements 

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 15.04.2025 



Particulars 

Note -2 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 

Freehold Land (Valued at Cost) 

Note - 3 

(i) Longterm Investments 
Investment in Equity shares of wholly owned subsidiaries(Valued at Cost) 

Accornreal Builders P Ltd (10000 Eq Shares of Rs. 10 each (PT 10000 Eq Shares) 

Compaqt Era Builders P Ltd (10000 Eq Shares of Rs. 10 each (PT 10000 Eq Shares) 

Destihomz Buildwell 1' Ltd (10000 Eq Shares of Es. 10 each (PT 10000 Eq Shares) 

Equibuild Relators P Ltd (10000 Eq Shares of Rs. 10 each (PT 10000 Eq Shares) 

Proprent Era Estates P Ltd (10000 Eq Shares of Rs. 10 each (PT 10000 Eq Shares) 

Binayah Builders P Ltd (10000 Eq Shares of Es. 10 each (PT 10000 Eq Shares) 

Firstcode Reality P Ltd (10000 Eq Shares of Rs. 10 each (PY 10000 Eq Shares) 

Note-4 

(j) Other non-current assets 

Advances for Land Purchases 

Security Deposit lodged 

Advances for Stamp Duty for Land Purchases 

Advances for Registration Fee for Land Purchases 

(i)Advances for Land Purchases to wholly owned subsidiaries 

Accornreal Builders P Ltd 

Compaqt Era Builders P Ltd 

Dcstihomz Buildwell P Ltd 

Equibuild Relators P Ltd 

Proprent Era Estates P Ltd 

Binayah Builders P Ltd 

Firstcode Reality P Ltd 

Other Non-current Assets-Total 

Note - 5 
Current Investments 
Current Investment in land 

Note - 6 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand - 
Balances with banks 

In current accounts 

Note -7 
Other current assets 
Prelimnary Expenses to the extent nor 'written off 

Other balances recoverable from 
Statutory! Government authorities 

TDS Receivable-AT 2024-25 
TDS Receivable-AT 2025-26 
MiVl Credit Entitlement 

Note - 8 
Equity share capital 

i Authorised 

Equity share capital 
each 

RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March, 2025 

All amount in 'Lakhs ,unless otherwise stared 

As at 

31 March 2025 

As at 

31 March 2024 

1,968.73 1,883.93 

1,968.73 1,883.93 

1.00 1.00 

1.00 1.00 

1.00 1.00 

1.00 1.00 

1.00 1.00 

1.00 1.00 

1.00 1.00 

7.00 7.00 

- 80.00 

0.10 - 

(0.30) 3.70 

(0.80) - 

(1.00) 83.70 

354.08 354.08 

1,026.25 1,029.25 

216.99 218.99 

296.81 296.81 

362.32 362.32 

185.93 185.93 

219.21 219.21 

2,661.58 2,666.58 

2,660.58 2,750.28 

Number 

- 

6.88 

- 

9.38 

6.88 9.38 

1.49 

1.54 

0.56 

0.27 
0.06 

1.49 

1.54 

0.56 

0.06 

3.91 3.65 

Amount Number Amount 

500000 50.00 5000000 500.00 

500000 50.00 5000000 500.00 



E. Other comprehensive income 

Opening balance 
Transferred/adjustment during the year 

Closing balance 

Total (D+E) 
(7.46) (0.90) 

RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March, 2025 

Particulars 

Ailamountin 'Lakhs,unIess other.sise stated 

As at As at 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

2.00 ii Issued, subscribed capital 

Equity share capital of face value of 10 19980 2.00 19980 

each 
19980 2.00 19980 2.00 

iii Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 10000 1.00 
Equity share capital of face value of 10 

10000 1.00 

each fully paid up 
10000 1.00 10000 1.00 

iv Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Equity shares 
Balance at the beginning of the year 

Add: Issued during the year 

10000 1.00 10000 1.00 

Less: Redeemed during the year 
10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00 

Balance at the end of the year 

iv Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares 
The company has only one class of equity shares. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the board is subject to approval by the shareholders in 
the following Annual General meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company the holders of the equity shares shall be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after adjustment 

of all preferential payments. The distribution will be made in the proportion of holding of equity shares. 

v Details of shareholder holding more than 5% share capital 

Name of the equity shareholder 

1 Radico Khaitan Limited 
Dineah Gupta jointly with Radico Khaitan 

2 Ltd 

Number of % holding of Number of shares % holding 
of share 

shares share capital capital 

9999 99.99% 9999 99.990/0  

0.01Vo 1 0.01°/i 

vi Details of shares held by promoters 

Name of the equity shareholder Number of shares % holding of
Number of % holding of share % Change in 

share capital shares capital Holding 

9999 9999% 9999 99.99% 0% 
1 Radico Khaitan Limited 

Dinesh Gupta jointly with Radico Khaitan 
0.01°/a I 0.01% 

2 Ltd 

Note - 9 
Other equity 

Reserve and surplus 

A. Securities premium 

Opening balance 

Transfcrred/ad3ustment during the year 

Closing balance 

B. General reserve 

Opening balance 

Transferred/adjustment during the year 

Closing balance 

C. Retained earnings 
Opening balance 
Transferred/adjustment during the year 

Closing balance 

(7.46) (0.90) 
D. Total (A+B+C) 

  

  

  

(0.90) 

(6.56) 

(7.46) 

(4.02) 

3.12  

(0.90) 



RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March, 2025 

Ailamountin rLakhs,un/ess otherwise stated 

As at 

31 March 2024 
As at 

Particulars 31 March 2025 

Nature and Purpose of other Reserves 

(i) Securities Premium Reserve 
Securities Premium Reserve is created when shares are issued at premium. It can be utslizcd to to pay off equity expenses, which include under'vriter fees, etc. 

(ii) General Reserve 
The company is requited to create a general reserve out of the profits when the company declares dividend to shareholders 

(iii) Retained Earnings 
Retained Earnings are created from the profits/loss of the company, as adjusted for distributions to owners, transfers to other reserves, etc. 

Note - 10 
Other Longterm Liabilities 
Capital Advance from Radico Khaitan Limited (holding co.) 

4,650.94 4,650.94 

 

4,650.94 4,650.94 

Note - 11 
Trade payables - current 

Undisputed 
Due to micro and small enterprises 

Due to others 

Particulars Outstanding as at 31 March, 2024 

Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

(i) Undisputed dues - MSME - - - - 

(ii) Undisputed dues - Others - - - - 

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - 

(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - 

Total - - - - 

Particulars Outstanding as at 31 March, 2023 

Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

(i) Undisputed dues - MSME - - - - 

(ii) Undisputed dues - Others - - - - 

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - 

iv Disputed dues - Others - - - 

Total - - - - 

*Disclosure under the Micro, Small ano ivieoium r.nterprises . ---------------------- 

Particulars 

31 March 2024 

() 

31 March 2023 

() 

i)   the amount and the interest due thereon remainsng unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each principal 
Nil Nil 

ii)   the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made 
Nil Nil 

iii)   the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but 
Nil Nil 

iv)   the amount of interest seemed and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and 
Nil Nil 

v)  the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when 
, e_.i 

Nil 
,i,.. s.,., ,t 5 n.vlhl 

Nil 
vith the Comnanv. 

rhe above information regarding Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to me cx 

Note - 12 
Other current liabilities 

Audit Fee Payable 
Other current liabilities 

Sundry 1'ayable 
I .cgsl l'rofessional Payable 

0.12 

2.33 

0.01 

0.17 
2.63 

0.12 

2.33 

0.01 

0.17 
2.63 

 

Note - 13 
Current tax liabilities 
Provision for income tax 

 

0.57 

 

  

057 

 

    

i'!.AC5APTi A,.. anni" ,, ii, l Msrch 2024. 31 March 2023: 



RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March, 2025 

All amount in 

Period ended 

Lakhs ,unless otherwise stated 

Year ended 
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Note -14 
Other income 
Lease Rent Income 2.69 5.58 

2.69 5.58 

Note - 15 
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 
Opening stock 
Add : Purchases during the year 

Less: Closing stock - 

Note-16 
Other expenses 
Audit Fee 

0.12 0.12 

Director sitting fee 0.87 0.80 

Bank Charges 
0.01 

Professional and Service Charges 1.33 1.02 

Legal Expenses 6.66 - 

Travelling Expenses 0.10 - 

Secretarial Expenses 0.19 - 

Interest onTDS 
- 0.00 

9.27 1.95 

Note - 17 
Income tax 

Accounting profit before tax (6.58) 3.63 

(6.58) 3.63 
Accounting profit before income tax 

0.57 
Provision for Tax - 0.06 
MAT Credit Entitlement 

- 0.51 
Income tax expense 



RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March, 2025 

All amount in Lakhs ,unless otherwise stated 

Period ended Year ended 
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Note-18 
Earnings per share (EPS) 
lhe Companys Earnings per Share (EPS') is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholders. Basic earnings per share is computed 
using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of 
common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year including share options, except where the result would be anti-dilutive. 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

(6.58) 3.12 
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders for basic earnings 
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution 

Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic/diluted EPS* 

(6.58) 3.12 

10,000 10,000 

*No  transaction is there which have impacted the calculation of weighted average number of shares. No other transaction involving Equity shares or 
potential Equity shares is there between the reporting date and the date of authorization of these financial statements. 

Earnings per equity share: 

(1) Basic ()
(65.77) 31.19 

(2) Diluted ()
(65.77) 31.19 



RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTE - 1 COMPANY OVERVIEW, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT  
ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Radico Spiritzs India Private Limited, "The Company" incorporated in the year 2013 is primarily 
engaged in the business of invest in and acquire, sell, transfer, subscribe, hold or otherwise dealing 
in Real Estate etc. The Company is not registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a "Non- 
Banking Financial Company. 

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Radico Khaitan Limited, a Public Company under 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act"). Therefore, the Company is classified as a deemed Public 
Company under Section 2(7 1) of the Act. 

Basis of preparation and measurement of financial statements  
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (md 
AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules 2015, as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act. All 
accounting policies and applicable IND AS have been applied consistently for all periods 

presented 

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis, 
except for the items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant md AS. The 
financial statements correspond to the classification provisions contained in md AS-i (Presentation 
of Financial Statements). 

The preparation of these financial statements requires management judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies, the accounting disclosures made and 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are made in the 
period, in which, the estimates are revised and in any future periods, effected pursuant to such 

revision. 

Significant accounting policies:  

Property, plant and equipment:  
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, if any. Cost includes expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Income tax:  
Current tax: Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the estimated taxable income for the 
current year  as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. 



Deferred tax: Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary 
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, 
unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent, it is probable that taxable income 
will be available against which the same can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the 
end of each subsequent reporting period. 

Provisions:  
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount 
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period after taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. 

Contingent Liabilities and Assets:  
Contingent liabilities are disclosed after evaluation of facts, uncertainties and possibility of 
reimbursement. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. 

Contingent assets are not recognized in financial statements but are disclosed, since the former 
treatment may result in the recognition of income that may or may not be realized. However, when 
the realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its 
recognition is appropriate. 

Revenue:  
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers at 
transaction price (net of taxes and duties), arrived at by determining the consideration received or 
receivable after adjusting returns, allowances, trade discounts, volume discounts etc. in exchange 

of goods or services. 

For applying above principle, the Company adopts five step model, which are: a) Identify the 
contract(s) with customer(s); b) Identify the performance obligations under the contract(s); c) 
Determine the transaction price; d) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in 
the contract(s); e) recognize revenue, when or as the entity satisfies a performance obligation. 

Contract Liabilities are recognized when there is an entity's obligation to transfer goods or services 
to a customer for which, the entity has received consideration from the customer. Revenue in 
excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets. 

Sale of Goods: Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time, when control is 
transferred to the customer. 

Interest Income: Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis using the effective interest 

method. 



For Radico Spiritzs India Pvt Ltd. ForMGMA& Co. 
Chartered Accountan 
FRN:O 

Earnings per share (EPS):  
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to the 
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the year. 

Cash and cash efluivalents:  
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at the bank, Cheques on hand and 
Remittances in transit for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. 

(CA Mukesh t Alok K ii • garwal Dinesh Kumar Gupta 

Partner
Ac Director Director 

M.No. 096832 DIN:  00985552 DIN:  03412900  

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15/04/2025 



RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS: 

NOTE No. 
19. No provision for gratuity has been made as no employee has put in qualifying period of 

service for entitlement to this benefit. 
20. The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public. 
21. In the opinion of the management and best to their knowledge and belief, Noncurrent, 

Current Assets, Loan & advances are realizable at least at the value indicated in the balance 
sheet. 

22. As per the information available with the management there is no contingent liabilities as at 
31/03/2025 

23. Payment to Auditors for Statutory Audit Rs. 12000/- (P.Y. Rs. 12000/-) 
24. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond 

with current year's figures. 
25. Related parties Disclosure (AS-18): 

Details of Related parties 

Related Party Current year Previous year 
Holding Company Radico Khaitan ltd Radico Khaitan ltd 

Subsidiary Company 1. Accomreal Builders Pvt 
Ltd 

2. Compaqt Era Builders 
Pvt Ltd 

3. Destihomz Buildwell Pvt 
Ltd 

4. Equibuild Realtors Pvt 
Ltd 

5. Proprent Era Estates Pvt 
Ltd 

6. Binayah Builders Pvt Ltd 
7. Firstcode Reality Pvt Ltd 

1. Accomreal Builders Pvt 
Ltd 

2. Compaqt Era Builders Pvt 
Ltd 

3. Destihomz Buildwell Pvt 
Ltd 

4. Equibuild Realtors Pvt 
Ltd 

5. Proprent Era Estates Pvt 
Ltd 

6. Binayah Builders Pvt Ltd 
7. Firstcode Reality Pvt Ltd 

Key Management Personal 
& Directors 

Alok Kumar Agarwal 
Dinesh Kurnar Gupta 
Manavalagan Prakash* 

Krishan Pal Singh 
Alok Kumar Agarwal 
Dinesh Kumar Gupta 

Associate Company Nil Nil 
Private company in which 
director is member or 
Director 

Consort Solutech Pvt Ltd Consort Solutech Pvt Ltd 

* Appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f 14.08.2024. 
Mr. Krishan Pal Singh resigned as Director w.e.f. 01.07.2024 



Transaction with related parties during the year: 

Name Relationship Nature of 
transaction 

FY 2024-25 
(Rs in Lacs.) 

FY 2023-24 
(Rs in Lacs.) 

Radico Khaitan 
Limited  

Holding Co. Advance 
Received (Net) 

-- 2151.20 

Accomreal 
Builders Pvt Ltd  

Subsidiary 
co. 

Advance Given 
(net) 

-- 7.46 

Compaqt Era 
Builders Pvt Ltd  

Subsidiary 
co. 

Advance Given 
(net) 

(-)3.00 568.80 

Destihomz 
Buildwell Pvt Ltd  

Subsidiary 
co. 

Advance Given 
(net) 

(-)2.00 -- 

Equibuild Realtors 
Pvt Ltd  

Subsidiary 
co. 

Advance Given 
(net) 

-- 18.30 

Proprent Era 
Estates Pvt Ltd  

Subsidiary 
co. 

Advance Given 
(net) 

-- (-)4.00 

Binayah Builders 
Pvt Ltd  

Subsidiary 
co. 

Advance Given 
(net) 

-- -- 

Firstcode Reality 
Pvt Ltd 

Subsidiary 
co. 

Advance Given 
(net) 

-- -- 

Outstanding balance with related parties: 

Name Relationship FY 2024-25 
(Rs in Lacs) 

FY 2023-24 
(Rs in Lacs) 

Capital Advance 
Taken: 

Radico Khaitan Limited  Holding Co. 4650.94 4650.94 

Capital Advance 
given:  
Accomreal Builders Pvt 
Ltd  

Subsidiary co. 354.08 354.08 

Compaqt Era Builders 
Pvt Ltd  

Subsidiary co. 1026.25 1029.25 

Destihomz Buildwell 
Pvt Ltd  

Subsidiary co. 216.99 218.99 

Equibuild Realtors Pvt 
Ltd  

Subsidiary Co. 296.81 296.81 

Proprent Era Estates 
Pvt Ltd  

Subsidiary co. 362.32 362.32 

Binayah Builders Pvt 
Ltd  

Subsidiary co. 185.93 185.93 

Firstcode Reality Pvt 
xd  

Subsidiary co. 219.21 219.21 



For Radico Spiritzs India Pvt Ltd. 

The Company has given its 22.42 Acre freehold land situated at Tehsil Sidhauli, District 
Sitapur, Uttar Pradesh to its holding company M/s Radico Khaitan Limited on lease for 15 
years @ 1000/- per acre/month for factory construction activity 

26. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006-

There is no amount outstanding to any MSME entity 

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

The Principal amount and the interest due thereon 
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 
accounting year  

Nil Nil 

Total amount due to micro and small enterprises  Nil Nil 

Interest due on above  Nil Nil 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of 
section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the 
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year  

Nil Nil 

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 
2006.  

Nil Nil 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at 
the end of each accounting year  

Nil Nil 

The amount of further interest remaining due and 
payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the 
small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED 
Act 2006 

Nil Nil 

.- ,-..-- 
V 

(CA Mukesh Gupta - Alok Kumj.Awal Dinesh'umar Gupta 

Partner Director Director 

M.No. 096832 DIN:  00985552 DIN:  03412900  

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15/04/2025 

ForMGMA& Co. 
Chartered 4ccounta 
FRN:0104 



MGMA & Co. 
Chartered Accountants INDIA 

H. 0. : 125, 1st Floor, Vyapar Bhawan, Chanderpuri, 
Navyug Market, Ghaziabad - 201001 

B. 0. 411, Essel House, 10, AsafAli Road, New Delhi-2 
Mob. 9810557405 I e-mail : mukesh.cagzb@gmail.com  

Ref No.  

INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'SREPORT 

To the Members of 

M/s Radico Spiritzs India Private Limited 

Report on the Consolidated md AS Financial 

Statements Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated md AS financial statements of M/s Radico Spiritzs 
India Private Limited ("the Holding Company") and its seven wholly owned subsidiaries companies 
together referred to as "The Group" which comprises the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
Statement of Changes in Equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Consolidated md AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the md AS and accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and profit/loss, total comprehensive income, 
the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated md AS financial 

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters (optional)jor listed companies) 

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit 

of the Consolidated md AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the Consolidated md AS financial statements as a whole, and informing our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to 
Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, 
does not include the Consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and w 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 



In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the auditor otherwise appears to be material 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated md AS 
Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated md AS financial statements that give a 

-true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (md AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Consolidated md AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the md AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated md AS Financial Statement 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated md AS 
financial statements. 

A further description of the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated md AS financial 
statements is included in Annexure A. This description forms part of our auditor's report. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020("the Order") issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in "Annexure-B" a statement on the 
matters specified in the order to the extent applicable to the company. 

2. AsrequiredbySection143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 
c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Repo 

are in agreement with the books of account 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated md AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accoun 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. M 
\_ 



For M 
Chartere 

Firm'sRegistration 

(CAM' .ta) 
ner 

Memesp 
No.09.832 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the Report on adequacy of the internal financial control with respect to the stand alone 

financial statement of the company and operating effectiveness of such control, we give our separate report 
as per Annexure-C. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 
i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial positions. 
ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 

any material foreseeable losses. 
iii) Based on our examination which included test checks, except for instances mentioned below the 

Company. in respect of financial years commencing on 1 April 2023. have used accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the 
same have been operated throughout the year for alt relevant transactions recorded in the software. 

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being 
tampered with other than the consequent impact of the exception given below; 

Nature of exception noted Details of Exception 
Instances of accounting software for 
maintaining books of account which did not 
have a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility, 

The audit trail feature was not enabled at the data 
base level for the accounting software SAP to log 
any direct data changes, used for maintenance of 
all accounting records by the Company. 

iv)There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company. 

Dated: 15/04/2025 

Place: New Delhi 

t}!:tf'J o& 



Annexure A to independent audit report: 

Responsibilities for Audit of Consolidated md AS Financial Statement 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated md AS financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial controls with reference 
to Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures 
in the Consolidated md AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. Evaluate the 
overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated md AS financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated md AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 



ForM. MA&Co 
Chartere 

Firm'sRegistrati 

M'ershi 
No. 096832 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the Consolidated md AS financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Dated: 15/04/2025 

Place: New Delhi 



For, MGMA & Co,.—i 
CharterJ Açcountantr 
FRN: 01 

(C. A. Mu 
Pa?tikr 

M.No. 096832 

"ANNEXURE-B" REFFERED TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE 
MEMBERS OF RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LTD ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2025  

Point no. (i) to ( xx) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020("the Order") issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, are not 
applicable to consolidated financial statements. 

(xxi) Whether there have been any qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors 
in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in 
the consolidated financial statements, if yes, indicate the details of the companies and the 
paragraph numbers of the CARO report containing the qualifications or adverse remarks. 

Auditor Observation: NO qualification or adverse remarks are given in reports of seven 
wholly owned subsidiaries included in consolidated financial statements. 

PLACE: New Delhi 
DATE : 15/04/2025 



"ANNEXURE C" REFFERED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 (1) OF THE INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MIs Radico Spiritzs India Private Limited 
ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 3 1.03.2025. 

(Report on the Internal Financial controls under clause (I) of section 143 (3) of the Companies Act, 
2013) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over consolidated financial reporting of MIs Radico 
Spiritzs India Private Limited (the Company) as of 31 March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAl"). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act"). 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial control system over financial reporting. 

Meaning Of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the corn . . - - ing 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the c 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthoriz 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financia 



For MGMA & Co  
Chartered, ecoun 

Firm'sRegistration 

Membship 
No. 096832 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAl. 

Dated: 15/04/2025 

Place: New Delhi 



For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Bareilly Road, Rampur, UP 244901 

CIN: U15494UP2013PTC073884 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,2025 

All amount in  ' Lakhs ,unless otherwise stated 

Asat Asat 

Particukars Note March 31, 2025 March  31, 2024  

I ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 4,424.43 4,339.63 

(b) Capital work-in-progress 

(c) Investment property 

(d) Goodwill/Goodwill on consolidation 3 0.24 0.24 

(e) Other intangible assets 

(I) Intangible assets undet development 

(g) Biological Assets other than bearer plants 

(h) Deferred tax assets, net 

(i) Longterm Investments 

) Other non-current assets 4 159.19 243.19 

4,583.87 4,583.07 

Current assets 

(a) Currernt Investment 5 11.77 11.77 

(b) Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 6 56.22 65.59 

(c) Other current assets 7 5.72 5.32 

73.71 82.68 

Total of Assets
4,657.58 4,665.75 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 

(a) Other Long term Liabilities 10 4,650.94 4,650.94 

 

4,650.94 4,650.94 

Current liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

Trade payables 
-Due to micro enterprises and small enterprises 

-Due to others 

11 

  

(b) Other current liabiliues 

(c) Current tax liabilities 

12 3.57 3.57 

13 0.13 2.09 

 

3.70 5.66 

  

4,657.59 4,665.75 
Total of Equity and Liabilities 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
1he accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements 
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date. 

 

 

0.00 0.00 
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CA Mukesh Gip f DineshKuIita Alok Kumar 

Partner Director Di- 

Membership Number: 096832 pIN:03412900] IDIN:009855521 

UDIN: )-çO%32. '- L7f 

Place: New Dcliii 
Date: 15.03.2025 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15.03.2025 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15.03.2025 

For MGMA & Co. 
Chartered A oun 
Firms Regis 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 

(b) Other equity 

8 1.00 1.00 

9 1.95 8.15 

2.95 9.15 

   



For MGMA & Co. 
Chartered Accoun s' & C0  
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RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Bareilly Road, Rampur, UP 244901 

CIN: U15494UP2013PTC073884 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2025 

All amount in Lakhs ,unless otherwise stated 

Note 
Period ended Year ended 

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Income 
Revenue from operations 

14 11.10 20.30 
Other income 11.10 20.30 

Expenses 
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 

15 

Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 

16 17.32 6.90 
Other expenses 17.32 6.90 

(6.22) 13.40 
Profit before tax 

17 1.92 
Current tax (6.22) 11.48 

Profit after tax 

Other comprehensive income 
A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(i) Equity Instruments through OCI (Net) 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 11.48 
Total comprehensive income for the year 

(6.22) 

18 
Earnings per equity share (In Rs.) (62.20) 114.78 

Basic () (62.20) 114.78 
Diluted () 

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements 19-26 

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

CA MukesGJpta ,...
(iinesi Kumar Gupta Alok Kumar 

Partner
Director 

Membership Number: 096832 [DIN:034129001 [DIN:00985552] 

UDIN: 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15.03.2025 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15.03.2025 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15.03.2025 
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RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31,2025 

All amount in 
31 March 2025 

Lakhs ,unless otherwise stated 
31 March 2024 

A. Cash flow from operating activities: 
Profit/(loss) before tax (6.22) 13.40 

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Interest income - - 

Dividend income - 
Operating loss before working capital changes and other adjustments: (6.22) 13.40 

Working capital changes and other adjustments.' 

- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables - - 

- (Increase)/decrease in loans, other financial assets and other assets (0.40) 3.86 

- (Increase)/decrease in inventories - - 

- Increase/(decrease) in trade payablcs - 
- (Decrease)/increase in other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions (1.96) 0.18 

Cash used in operating activities (8.58) 17.45 

Income taxes paid (net) (1.86) 

Net cash used in operating activities (8.58) 15.59 

B. Cash flow from investing activities: 
Dividend income 

Net cash flow from investing activities 

C. Cash flow from financing activities: 

Proceeds form issue of equity share capital - - 

Proceeds of borrowings from banks and financial institutions - 2,151.20 

Purchase of Fixed Assets (84.80) (2,225.56) 

Loan/Advance to Subsidiaries/for land 84.00 72.42 

Investment in land 

Net cash flow from /(used in) financing activities (0.80) (1.94) 

D. Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (9.37) 13.65 

E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 65.59 51.95 

F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) 56.22 65.59 

(a) Cash and cash equivalents includes: 
Cash on hand 1.00 1.00 

Balances with banks 

In current accounts 55.22 64.59 

Total of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 6) 56.22 65.59 

0.00 (0.00) 

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements 

This is the Statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date 

CA Muke)G' :j j\,C" Dinesh Kumar Gupta Alok Kumar Aga 

Partner Director Direct 

Membership Number: 096832 [DIN:034129001 [DIN:00985552] 

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi 

Date: 15.03.2025 Date: 15.03.2025 Date: 15.03.2025 



RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025 

All amount in 'Lakhs ,unless otherwise stared 

As at As at 

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

4,424.43 4,339.63 

Note -2 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 
Freehold Land (Valued at Cost) 

4,424.43 4,339.63 

Note - 
(d) Goodwill/Goodwill on consolidation 0.24 
Pee-acquisition ProfIt/Loss 

0.24 

0.24 0.24 

Note - 4 
(j) Other non-current assets 
(i)Advances for Land Purchases 

157.35 
1.84 

237.35 
5.84 

Advances for Stamp Duty for Land Purchases 
(0.80) 

Advances for Registration Fee for Land Purchases 

0.80 
Security Deposit lodged 

(i)Advances for Land Purchases to wholly owned subsidiaries 

159.19 243.19 

Accomreal Builders P Ltd 
Compaqt Era Builders P Ltd 

Destihomz Buildwell P Ltd 

Equibuild Relators P Ltd 
Proprent Era Estates P Ltd 

Binayah Builders P Ltd 
Firstcode Reality P Ltd 

Other Non-current Assets-Total 159.19 243.19 

Note - 5 
Current Investments 11.77 11.77 
Current Investment in land 

11.77 11.77 

Note - 6 
Cash and cash equivalents 

1.00 1.00 
Cash on hand 
Balances with banks 

55.22 64.59 
In Current accounts 

56.22 65.59 

Note - 7 
Other current assets 
Prelimnary Expenses to the extent not written off 

2.75 2.75 

Other balances recoverable from 1.54 1.54 

Statutory! Government authorities 

Lease Rent Receivable - Radico Khattan 
Limited 

0.78 0.78 
TIDS Receivable-AY 2024-25 

0.27 
TDS Receivable-AY 2025-26 

0.38 0.25 
MAT Credit Entitlement 5.72 5.32 



8.15 (3.39) 

0.02 0.06 

(6.22 11.48 

1.95 8.15 

1.95 8.15 

C. Retained earnings 
Opening balance 

Tax Adjustment 2022-23 (I. Tax & MAT) 

Transferred/ad justmen 

Pee-acquisition Profi 

Closing balance 

D. Total (A+B+C) 

RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025 

All amount in 'Lakhs ,unless otherwise stated 

Particulars 

 

As at 

31 March 2025 

As at 

31 March 2024 

    

    

Note - 8 

Equity share capital 

Authorised Number Amount Number Amount 

Equity share capital of face value of 10 

each 500000 50.00 5000000 500.00 

500000 50.00 5000000 500.00 

ii Issued, subscribed capital 

Equity share capital of face value of 10 19980 2.00 19980 2.00 

each 

iii Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 

Equity share capital of face value of 10
10000 1.00 10000 1.00 

each fully paid up 
10000 1.00 10000 1.00 

iv
Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Equity shares 

Balance at the beginning of the year 10000 1.00 10000 1.00 

Add: Issued during the year - - - - 

Less: Redeemed during the year - - 

Balance at the end of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00 

iv Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares 
The company has only one class of equity shares. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the boar 

approval by the shareholders in the following Annual General meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company the holders of the equity 

entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after adjustment of all preferential payments. The distribution will be made in the proportion 

equity shares. 

v Details of shareholder holding more than 5% share capital 
Number of i/ holding of % holding of share 

Name of the equity shareholder
Number of shares 

shares share capital capital 

I Radico Khaitan Limited 9999 99.99% 9999 99.99% 

Dinesh Gupta jointly wilh Radico Khaitan 

2 Ltd I 0.01°/o 1 0.01% 

vi Details of shares held by promoters 

Name of the equity shareholder Number of shares % holding of
Number of % holding of share % Change in 

share capital shares capital Holding 

1 Radico Khaitan Limited 9999 99.99°/a 9999 99.99°/o 0°/o 

Dinesh Gupta jointly with Radico Khaitan 
001°o 1 0.01% 0% 

2 LId 

Note .. 9 

Other equity 

Reserve and surplus 

A. Securities premium 

Opening balance 

Transferred/adjustment during the year 

Closing balance 

B. General reserve 

Opening balance 

Transferred/adjustment during the year 

Closing balance 

19980 2.00 19980 2.00 



RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025 

Al/amount in rLakhs ,unless otherwise stated 

Particulars 

 

As at 
31 March 2025 

As at 
31 March 2024 

    

    

Other comprehensive income 
Opening balance 
Transferred/adjustment during the year - - 

Closing balance 
Total (D+E)

1.95 8.15 

Nature and Purpose of other Reserves 

(I) Securities Premium Reserve 
Securities Premium Reserve is created when shares are issued at ptemium. It can be utilized to to pay off equity expenses, which include under 

(ii) General Reserve 
The company is required to create a general reserve out of the profits whrn the company declares dividend to shareholders 

(iii) Retained Earnings 
Rrtained Earnings are created from the profits/loss of the company, as adjusted foe distributions to owners, transfers to other reserves, etc. 

Note - 10 
Other Longtersn Liabilities 
Capital Advance from Radico Khaitan Limited (holding co.) 4,650.94 4,650.94 

4,650.94 4,650.94 

Note - 11 
Trade payables - current 
Undisputed 
Due to micro and small enterpesses 

Due to others 

Note - 12 
Other current liabilities 

0.96 0.96 
Audit Fee Payable 

2.61 2.43 
Other current liabilities 0.01 
Sundry Payable 0.17 
Legal Professional Payable 

3,57 3.57 

Note - 13 
Current tax liabilities 0.13 2.09 
Provision for income tax 

0.13 2.09 

E. 



RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025 

All amount in Lakhs ,unless otherwise stated 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Note - 14 
Other income 

11.10 20.30 
Lease Rent income 
Profit fixed on sale of assets 

- - 

11.10 20.30 

Note - 15 
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 
Opening stock 
Add: Purchases during the year 

Less: Closing stock 

Note - 16 
Other expenses 
Audit Fee 

0.96 0.96 

Director sitting fee 0.87 0.80 

Bank Charges 
- 0.22 

Professional and Service Charges 7.05 4.87 

Interest on TDS 0.15 0.04 

Legal and professional charges 6.66 

Rates and taxes - - 
Secretarial Expenses. 1.53 - 

Traveling and conveyance expenses 0.10 - 

17.32 6.90 

Note - 17 
Income tax 

Accounting profit before tax (6.22) 13.40 

(6.22) 13.40 
Accounting profit before income tax 

Provision for Tax 
MAT Credit Entitlement 

0.13 
0.13 

2.09 
0.17 

1.92 
Income tax expense 



RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025 

All amount in Lakhs ,unless otherwise stated 

Particulars 

 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

     

     

     

Note - 18 
Earnings per share (EPS) 
The Company's Earnings per Share ("EPS') is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholders. Basic earnings per share is computed 
using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of 
common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year including share options, except where the result would be anti-dilutive. 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

Profit! (loss) attributable to equity holders for basic earnings 
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution (6.22) 11.48 

Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic/diluted EPS* 10,000 10,000 

*No  transaction is there which have impacted the calculation of weighted average number of shares. No other transaction involving Equity shares or 
potential Equity shares is there between the reporting date and the date of authorization of these financial statements. 

Earnings per equity share: 

(1) Basic ()
(62.20) 114.78 

(2) Diluted ()
(62.20) 114.78 

c\ & 

I Y. 

/ 

'Nd -' 

(6.22) 11.48 



RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTE - 1 CONSOLIDATED OVERVIEW, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND  
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Radico Spiritzs India Private Limited, "The Company" incorporated in the year 2013 is primarily 
engaged in the business of invest in and acquire, sell, transfer, subscribe, hold or otherwise dealing 
in Real Estate etc. The Company is not registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a "Non- 
Banking Financial Company. 

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Radico Khaitan Limited, a public limited company 
under the Companies Act 2013(the "Act"). Therefore the Company classified as deemed Public 
Company under section 2(71) of the Companies Act 2013. 

The following are the seven wholly owned subsidiary companies as on 31/03/2025. Financials of 
these seven wholly owned companies have been consolidated: 

1. Accomreal Builders Pvt Ltd 
2. Binayah Builders Pvt Ltd 
3. Compaqt Era Builders Pvt Ltd 
4. Destihomz Buildwell Pvt Ltd 
5. Equibuild Reators Pvt Ltd 
6. Firstcode Realty Pvt Ltd 
7. Proprent Era Estate Pvt Ltd. 

Basis of preparation and measurement of financial statements  

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (md AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of 
the Act. All accounting policies and applicable [ND AS have been applied consistently for all 
periods presented 

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on an 
accrual basis, except for the items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant md 
AS. The financial statements correspond to the classification provisions contained in md AS-i 
(Presentation of Financial Statements). 

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies, the accounting 
disclosures made and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. Estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are made in the period, in which, the estimates are revised and in any future periods, effected 

pursuant ch revision. 



Significant accounting policies:  

Property, plant and equipment:  
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, if any. Cost includes expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Income tax:  
Current tax: Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the estimated taxable income for the 
current year as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. 

Deferred tax: Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary 
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, 
unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent, it is probable that taxable income 
will be available against which the same can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the 
end of each subsequent reporting period. 

Provisions:  
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount 
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period after taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. 

Contingent Liabilities and Assets:  
Contingent liabilities are disclosed after evaluation of facts, uncertainties and possibility of 
reimbursement. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. 

Contingent assets are not recognized in financial statements but are disclosed, since the former 
treatment may result in the recognition of income that may or may not be realized. However, when 
the realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset, and its 
recognition is appropriate. 

Revenue:  
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers at 
transaction price (net of taxes and duties), arrived at by determining the consideration received or 
receivable after adjusting returns, allowances, trade discounts, volume discounts etc. in exchange 

of goods or services. 

For applying above principle, the Company adopts five step model, which are: a) Identify the 
contract(s) with customer(s); b) Identify the performance obligations under the contract(s); c) 
Determine the transaction price; d) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in 
the contrac ; recognize revenue, when or as the entity satisfies a performance obligation. 

C,  

I / 



ForMGMA& Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN:01I79C 

(CAM 
Partner 
M.No. 096832 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15/04/2025 

Contract Liabilities are recognized when there is an entity's obligation to transfer goods or services 
to a customer for which, the entity has received consideration from the customer. Revenue in 
excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets. 

Sale of Goods: Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time, when control is 
transferred to the customer. 

Interest Income: Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis using the effective interest 

method. 

Earnings per share (EPS):  
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to the 
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the year. 

Cash and cash equivalents:  
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at the bank, Cheques on hand and 
Remittances in transit for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. 

For Radico Spiritzs India Pvt Ltd. 

Alok Kumar A a! Dinesh Kumar Gupta 

Directo Director 
DIN:  00985552 DIN:  03412900  



RADICO SPIRITZS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS: 

NOTE No. 
19. No provision for gratuity has been made as no employee has put in qualifying period of 

service for entitlement to this benefit. 
20. The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public. 
21. In the opinion of the management and best to their knowledge and belief, Noncurrent, 

Current Assets, Loan & advances are realizable at least at the value indicated in the balance 

sheet. 
22. As per the information available with the management there is no contingent liabilities as at 

31/03/2025 
23. Payment to Auditors for Statutory Audit Rs. 96000/- (P.Y. Rs. 96000/-) 
24. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond 

with current year's figures. 
25. Related parties Disclosure (AS-i 8): 

Details of Related parties 

Related Party  Current year Previous year 

Holding Company  Radico Khaitan ltd Radico K.haitan ltd 

Key Management Personal 
& Directors 

Alok Kumar Agarwal 
Dinesh Kumar Gupta 
Manavalagan Prakash* 

Krishan Pal Singh 
Alok Kumar Agarwal 
Dinesh Kumar Gupta 

Associate Company  Nil Nil 

Private company in which 
director is member or 
Director 

Consort Solutech Pvt Ltd Consort Solutech Pvt Ltd 

* Appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f 14.U.2U2' 
Mr. Krishan Pal Singh resigned as Director w.e.f. 01.07.2024 

Transaction with related parties during the year: 

Name Relationship Nature of 
transaction 

FY 2024-25 
(Rs in Lacs.) 

FY 2023-24 
(Rs in Lacs.) 

Radico Khaitan 
Limited 

Holding Co. Advance 
Received (Net) 

2151.20 

Outstanding balance with related parties: 

Name Relationship FY 2024-25 
(Rs in Lacs) 

FY 2023-24 
(Rs in Lacs) 

Capital Advance 
Taken:  
Radjlai.tan Limited Holding Co. 4650.94 4650.94 



For M G MA & Co. 
Chartere Accou 
FRN:01 

The Company and its subsidiaries have given freehold land situated at Tehsil Sidhauli, 
District Sitapur, Uttar Pradesh to its holding company MIs Radico Khaitan Limited on 
lease for 15 years @ 1000/- per acre/month for factory construction activity. 

26. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006-

There is no amount outstanding to any MSME entity 

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

The Principal amount and the interest due thereon 
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 
accounting year  

Nil Nil 

Total amount due to micro and small enterprises Nil Nil 

Interest due on above  Nil Nil 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of 
section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the 
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year  

Nil Nil 

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 
2006.  

Nil Nil 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at 
the end of each accounting year  

Nil Nil 

The amount of further interest remaining due and 
payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the 
small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED 
Act 2006 

Nil Nil 

For Radico Spiritzs India Pvt Ltd. 

(CA Muk' s i Alok Kumar rwal Dinesh Kumar Gupta 

Partner I ector Director 

M.No. 096832 DIN:  00985552 DIN:  03412900  

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15/04/2025 
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